AGREEMENT BETWEEN BOROUGH OF RARITAN AND LOCAL 2168 A.F.S.C.M.E., AFL-CIO RARITAN EMPLOYEES

JANUARY 1, 2015

THROUGH

DECEMBER 31, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE#

PREAMBLE	 1
ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION	_
Article 2 - Deductions	
ARTICLE 3 - HOURS OF WORK - BLUE COLLAR	 1
ARTICLE 4 - SENIORITY	 1
Article 5 - Grievance Procedure	
Article 6 - Overtime	 3
ARTICLE 7 - CALL IN PAY	
ARTICLE 8 - SICK LEAVE	
ARTICLE 9 - LEAVES OF ABSENCE	 4
Article 10 – Holidays	
ARTICLE 11 – VACATIONS	 6
ARTICLE 12 – PERSONAL DAYS	 6
ARTICLE 13 – SAFETY COMMITTEE	
Article 14 – Work Uniforms	 6
Article 15 – Bereavement Leave	 7
Article 16 – Insurance and Retirement	 7
Article 17 – Transfers	 8
Article 18 – Discipline	_
Article 19 – Rest Periods	-
Article 20 – Military Leave	 9
Article 21 – Jury Leave	 9
Article 22 – Personnel Access	 10
Article 23 – Union Representative	 10
Article 24 – Retirement	 10
ARTICLE 25 – WORK RULES AND REGULATIONS	 10
Article 26 – Severability	 10
Article 27 – Salaries	 11
Article 28 – Termination	 11
ARTICLE 29 – AGENCY SHOP	 11
Article 30 – Fully Bargained	 12
Appendix A	 13
Appendix B	 14
Appendix C	 15

PREAMBLE

ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT MADE THIS ___ DAY OF _____, 2015 BETWEEN THE BOROUGH OF RARITAN, HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE BOROUGH AND THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 2168 AFL-CIO, HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE UNION.

IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL COVENANTS HEREIN CONTAINED, THE PARTIES HERETO MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS.

ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION

THE EMPLOYER RECOGNIZES THE UNION AS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE BARGAINING AGENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF ESTABLISHING SALARIES, WAGES, HOURS AND OTHER CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT FOR ALL OF ITS EMPLOYEES IN THE CLASSIFICATIONS LISTED IN APPENDIX A ATTACHED HERETO, AND BY REFERENCE MADE A PART OF THIS AGREEMENT, AND FOR SUCH ADDITIONAL CLASSIFICATION AS THE PARTIES MAY LATER AGREE TO INCLUDE.

ARTICLE 2 – DEDUCTIONS

THE BOROUGH ADMINISTRATOR OF THE BOROUGH IS HEREBY DIRECTED AND AUTHORIZED TO MAKE UNION PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS FROM ALL UNION MEMBERS. THE UNION WILL SUPPLY THE NAMES OF ALL EMPLOYEES BELONGING TO SAID UNION AND FROM WHOM SAID UNION PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS ARE TO BE MADE. THE AGGREGATE TOTAL OF SUCH DEDUCTIONS TOGETHER WITH A LIST FROM WHOM DUES HAVE BEEN DEDUCTED, SHALL BE REMITTED TO COUNCIL #73, NOTTINGHAM VILLAGE SQUARE, 2653-A WHITEHORSE-HAMILTON SQUARE ROAD, HAMILTON, NEW JERSEY 08690-2717.

ARTICLE 3 – HOURS OF WORK – BLUE COLLAR

The workweek shall be forty (40) hours consisting of five (5) consecutive eight (8) hour days, Monday through Friday from 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. with the exception of Sanitation, which starts at 4:00 a.m. on Tuesday and Wednesday. The 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. shift shall have $\frac{1}{2}$ hour off for lunch. Time and one-half shall be paid for any hours worked beyond those specified in the workweek.

ARTICLE 4 – SENIORITY

SENIORITY STARTS FROM THE FIRST DAY OF EMPLOYMENT, NOT FROM THE FIRST DAY OF PERMANENT EMPLOYMENT. SENIORITY SHALL BE BROKE BY A VOLUNTARY QUIT OR TERMINATION. THE PRINCIPLES OF SENIORITY AND PROMOTION FROM WITHIN SHALL BE THE GUIDING FACTOR IN RELATIONS BETWEEN THE PARTIES, BUT ANY EMPLOYEE DESIGNATED TO DO A PARTICULAR JOB MUST BE ABLE TO DEMONSTRATE AN ABILITY TO DO THE JOB REQUIRED.

ALL JOB OPENINGS MUST BE POSTED IN EACH DEPARTMENT FOR FIVE (5) DAYS. COPIES OF ALL JOB POSTINGS SHALL BE GIVEN TO THE LOCAL UNION PRESIDENT.

ALL EMPLOYEES WHO WORK AT A JOB WHICH PAYS A HIGHER RATE OF PAY THAN THEIR OWN [FOR AT LEAST TWO (2) WEEKS] SHALL RECEIVE THE HIGHER RATE OF PAY FOR THE TIME WORKED AT THE HIGHER CLASSIFICATION.

ARTICLE 5 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

GRIEVANCE AS USED HEREIN SHALL MEAN: DISPUTES BETWEEN THE BOROUGH AND THE UNION OR ANY OF ITS MEMBERS.

 $STEP\ 1$ – The Grievance shall be presented orally by the aggrieved or his Steward to the Superintendent.

STEP 2 – IF NOT SATISFACTORILY SETTLED WITHIN THE FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS, THE GRIEVANCE SHALL BE REDUCED TO WRITING AND SUBMITTED TO THE ADMINISTRATOR. THE ADMINISTRATOR SHALL THEN HAVE FIVE (5) WORKING DAYS IN WHICH TO SUBMIT HIS ANSWER. IF AT THIS STEP, NO ANSWER IS RECEIVED, THE GRIEVANCE SHALL BE CONSIDERED AS SETTLED IN FAVOR OF THE EMPLOYEE.

STEP 3 – IF THE GRIEVANCE IS NOT SETTLED SATISFACTORILY SETTLED WITHIN FIVE (5) DAYS, THE GRIEVANCE SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE MAYOR AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE OF NO LESS THAN TWO (2) COUNCILMEN AND A HEARING SHALL BE HELD WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS, AT WHICH HEARING THE GRIEVANT, SHOP STEWARD, LOCAL UNION PRESIDENT AND THE COUNCIL 73 STAFF REPRESENTATIVE SHALL BE PRESENT.

STEP 4 – MAYOR AND FULL COUNCIL – 5 DAYS TO ANSWER, AS ABOVE.

STEP 5 – IF THE GRIEVANCE IS STILL UNSETTLED EITHER PARTY MAY, WITHIN FIFTEEN (15) DAYS AFTER THE REPLY OF THE BOROUGH AND THE COUNCIL IS DUE, BY WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE OTHER, REQUEST ARBITRATION.

ARBITRATION – AN ARBITRATOR TO BE SELECTED BY THE BOROUGH SHALL CONDUCT THE ARBITRATION PROCEEDING AND THE UNION WITHIN SEVEN (7) DAYS AFTER NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN. IF THE PARTIES FAIL TO SELECT AN ARBITRATOR, THE STATE MEDIATION AND CONCILIATION SERVICE OR THE PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS COMMISSION (PERC) SHALL BE REQUESTED BY EITHER PARTY OR BOTH PARTIES TO PROVIDE A PANEL OF FIVE (5) ARBITRATORS. BOTH THE BOROUGH AND THE UNION SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO STRIKE TWO (2) NAMES FROM THE PANEL. THE PARTY REQUESTING ARBITRATION SHALL STRIKE THE FIRST NAME, THE OTHER PARTY SHALL THEN STRIKE ONE NAME.

THE PURPOSE WILL BE REPEATED AND THE REMAINING PERSON SHALL BE THE ARBITRATOR.

THE DECISION OF THE ARBITRATOR SHALL BE FINAL AND BINDING ON THE PARTIES AND THE ARBITRATOR SHALL BE REQUESTED TO ISSUE HIS DECISION WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF TESTIMONY AND ARGUMENT.

EXPENSES FOR THE ARBITRATOR'S SERVICES AND THE PROCEEDINGS SHALL BE BORNE EQUALLY BY THE BOROUGH AND THE UNION.

TIME EXTENSIONS BEYOND THOSE STIPULATED ABOVE MAY BE ARRIVED AT BY MUTUAL AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES CONCERNED.

ARTICLE 6 – OVERTIME

TIME AND ONE-HALF THE EMPLOYEES' REGULAR HOURLY RATE OF PAY SHALL BE PAID FOR WORK UNDER THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:

- A. ALL HOURS WORKED BEYOND THE REGULAR SCHEDULED WORKDAY.
- B. ALL HOURS WORKED BEYOND THE REGULAR SCHEDULED WORKWEEK.
- C. ALL HOURS WORKED ON A HOLIDAY SHALL BE AT TIME AND ONE-HALF PLUS HOLIDAY PAY EXCEPT THAT EMPLOYEES REQUIRED TO WORK ON CHRISTMAS DAY SHALL BE PAID TWO TIMES THEIR REGULAR HOURLY RATE OF PAY PLUS HOLIDAY PAY.
- D. ALL HOURS WORKED ON A SATURDAY SHALL BE AT ONE AND ONE-HALF TIMES AND SUNDAY IS AT A DOUBLE TIME RATE OF PAY.

FOR OVERTIME COMPUTATIONS PURPOSES ONLY, TIME WITHIN THE EMPLOYEE'S STANDARD WEEKLY WORK SCHEDULE FOR WHICH THE EMPLOYEES RECEIVED PAY FROM THE BOROUGH FOR APPROVED ABSENCE, SHALL BE CREDITED TO TIME WORKED WHEN COMPUTING THE WORKWEEK.

OVERTIME SHALL BE OFFERED AND DISTRIBUTED EQUALLY AMONG ALL EMPLOYEES IN THE SAME JOB CLASSIFICATION. IN CASE OF EMERGENCY, NO EMPLOYEE SHALL REFUSE TO WORK OVERTIME WITHOUT JUST CAUSE.

ALL EMPLOYEES WORKING ON SNOW REMOVAL THROUGH A REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEAL PERIOD SHALL BE GIVEN ONE HOT MEAL ALLOCATION PROVIDING THAT THE EMPLOYEE HAS WORKED FOUR (4) HOURS OVERTIME OR IF THE EMPLOYEE IS CALLED IN AT LEAST TWO (2) HOURS BEFORE HIS STARTING TIME AND WORKS THROUGH HIS REGULAR BREAKFAST HOUR. BREAKFAST NOT TO EXCEED \$10.00 FOR EACH EMPLOYEE. HOT MEAL ALLOWANCE NOT TO EXCEED \$15.00 PER EMPLOYEE.

ARTICLE 7 – CALL IN PAY

ANY EMPLOYEE CALLED TO EMERGENCY DUTY THAT TAKES LESS THAN THREE (3) HOURS TO CORRECT, SHALL BE GIVEN A MINIMUM OF THREE (3) HOURS PAY AT TIME AND ONE-HALF.

EMERGENCY TO BE DETERMINED BY THE SUPERINTENDENT OR OTHER AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL OR OFFICIALS. ALSO POLICE DEPARTMENT, CHAIRMAN OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ADMINISTRATOR.

ARTICLE 8 – SICK LEAVE

- 1. FULL TIME EMPLOYEES WHO HAVE WORKED LESS THAN ONE YEAR SHALL BE ENTITLED TO ONE SICK LEAVE DAY PER MONTH FOR ALL MONTHS WORKED UP TO ONE YEAR.
- 2. ALL EMPLOYEES SHALL BE ENTITLED TO TWELVE (12) DAYS SICK LEAVE WITH PAY EACH YEAR.
- 3. Full-time employees shall be entitled to twelve (12) working days of sick leave with pay per year on each calendar year, after they have completed one year of satisfactory continuous service. Full-time employees who have worked less than one year shall be entitled to one sick leave day with pay for each month worked. Sick leave can be accumulated up to a maximum of one-hundred-twenty (120) working days if required, and may be used by an employee only for personal illness or a disabling injury; sick leave may not be used in advance of its accrual. The Borough will provide additional sick days after an employee's accumulated sick days are exhausted, at the discretion of the Borough Council and in accordance with the existing personnel manual.
- 4. A DOCTOR'S CERTIFICATE IS REQUIRED AFTER FIVE (5) DAYS OF CONTINUOUS ABSENCE.

EMPLOYEES WHO ARE ABSENT DUE TO ILLNESS SHALL NOTIFY THE SUPERVISOR AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE THE DAY OF THEIR ILLNESS.

EACH EMPLOYEE SHALL BE ENTITLED TO SAVE TWO UTILIZED SICK DAYS IN EACH YEAR OR SERVICE COMMENCING JANUARY 1, 1982, TO BE UTILIZED AS TERMINAL LEAVE. THE TOTAL NUMBER OF TERMINAL LEAVE DAYS SHALL BE LIMITED TO A TOTAL OF 40 DAYS, OR THE AMOUNT IN DOLLARS OR DAYS LIMITED BY STATE LAW AT THE TIME OF PAYMENT, WHICHEVER IS LESS. WHERE AN EMPLOYEE UTILIZES THE 12 SICK DAYS EARNED, HE SHALL NOT BE ENTITLED TO SAVE ANY DAYS.

TERMINAL LEAVE SHALL BE IN DAYS OFF AND NO CASH PAYMENTS SHALL BE MADE UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES EXCEPT EMPLOYEES' DEATH. A RETIRING EMPLOYEE SHALL BE GRANTED HIS ACCRUED TERMINAL LEAVE DAYS OFF IN WORKING DAYS IMMEDIATELY PROCEEDING HIS DATE OF RETIREMENT.

ARTICLE 9 - LEAVES OF ABSENCE

LEAVES OF ABSENCE WITH PAY MAY BE GRANTED TO THE UNION OFFICER OR DELEGATE TO CONVENTIONS, INSTITUTES OR EDUCATIONAL CONFERENCES FOR A TOTAL OF THREE (3)

DAYS. THE THREE (3) DAYS ARE NOT TO BE EXCEEDED IN ANY ONE YEAR FOR ANY ONE DELEGATE OR OFFICER. ANY EMPLOYEE IN NECESSARY ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS WITH BOROUGH OFFICIALS OR SUPERVISORS, WHILE DEALING WITH GRIEVANCES OR PROPOSALS, WILL BE EXCUSED FROM DUTY DURING SUCH MEETINGS WITHOUT LOSS OF PAY.

LEAVES WITHOUT PAY MAY BE GRANTED FOR OTHER UNION BUSINESS OR OTHER MUTUALLY SATISFACTORY CAUSES.

ARTICLE 10 – HOLIDAYS

THE FOLLOWING DAYS SHALL BE RECOGNIZED AS PAID HOLIDAYS:

NEW YEAR'S DAY

COLUMBUS DAY

WASHINGTON'S BIRTHDAY

THANKSGIVING DAY

GOOD FRIDAY

DAY AFTER THANKSGIVING DAY

MEMORIAL DAY

CHRISTMAS DAY

INDEPENDENCE DAY

CHRISTMAS EXTRA DAY

LABOR DAY

FLOATING HOLIDAY

AN EXTRA DAY FOR THE CHRISTMAS DAY HOLIDAY SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS: WHEN CHRISTMAS FALLS ON A MONDAY, FRIDAY OF THAT WEEK WILL BE THE PAID HOLIDAY; WHEN CHRISTMAS FALLS ON A TUESDAY, FRIDAY OF THAT WEEK WILL BE THE PAID HOLIDAY; WHEN CHRISTMAS FALLS ON A WEDNESDAY, FRIDAY OF THAT WEEK WILL BE THE PAID HOLIDAY; WHEN CHRISTMAS FALLS ON A THURSDAY, FRIDAY OF THAT WEEK WILL BE THE PAID HOLIDAY; WHEN CHRISTMAS FALLS ON A SATURDAY, THURSDAY OF THAT WEEK WILL BE THE PAID HOLIDAY; WHEN CHRISTMAS FALLS ON A SATURDAY, THURSDAY OF THAT WEEK WILL BE THE PAID HOLIDAY; WHEN CHRISTMAS FALLS ON A SUNDAY, FRIDAY OF THE PRECEDING WEEK WILL BE THE PAID HOLIDAY.

HOLIDAYS FALLING ON A SATURDAY SHALL BE OBSERVED ON THE PRECEDING FRIDAY. HOLIDAYS FALLING ON A SUNDAY SHALL BE OBSERVED ON THE FOLLOWING MONDAY. IF A HOLIDAY FALLS DURING AN EMPLOYEE'S VACATION PERIOD, THE EMPLOYEE SHALL RECEIVE AN ADDITIONAL DAY OF VACATION. THE FLOATING HOLIDAY SHALL BE TAKEN WITH PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE PUBLIC WORKS MANAGER.

If an employee is required to work on a holiday, he shall receive time and one-half (1-1/2) for the hours worked in addition to his holiday pay.

IT IS AGREED THAT IN ORDER FOR AN EMPLOYEE TO BE ENTITLED TO ANY HOLIDAY PAY, EACH EMPLOYEE MUST WORK THE DAY PRIOR TO AND THE DAY FOLLOWING SAID HOLIDAY, UNLESS A REASONABLE EXCUSE IS GIVEN FOR ABSENCE.

ARTICLE 11 – VACATIONS

VACATIONS SHALL BE ON THE FOLLOWING BASIS AT THE BEGINNING OF EACH YEAR.

6	MONTH:	S TO	1 YEAR	1	WORKWEEK
1	YEAR	TO	6 YEARS	2	WORKWEEKS
7	YEARS	TO	13 YEARS	3	WORKWEEKS
14	YEAR	TO	20 YEARS	4	WORKWEEKS
21	YEARS	TO	25 YEARS	5	WORKWEEKS
OV	er 25 ye.	ARS		6	WORKWEEKS

THE RATE OF VACATION PAY SHALL BE THE EMPLOYEE'S REGULAR STRAIGHT TIME RATE OF PAY IN EFFECT FOR THE EMPLOYEE'S REGULAR JOB ON THE PAYDAY IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE EMPLOYEE'S VACATION PERIOD.

VACATION PERIOD SHALL BE ARRANGED WITH AND APPROVED BY THE APPROPRIATE DEPARTMENT HEAD. IF THE VACATION IS REQUESTED IN WRITING ON OR BEFORE APRIL 30, THEN EMPLOYEES WITH SENIORITY WILL BE GIVEN FIRST PREFERENCE IN THE ASSIGNMENT OF VACATIONS. VACATIONS REQUESTED AFTER THESE DATES WILL BE GRANTED ON A FIRST COME, FIRST SERVE BASIS.

VACATION ALLOWANCE MUST BE TAKEN DURING THE CALENDAR YEAR.

IF A HOLIDAY FALLS DURING AN EMPLOYEE'S VACATION PERIOD, THE EMPLOYEE SHALL BE ENTITLED TO AN ADDITIONAL VACATION DAY IN LIEU OF THE HOLIDAY.

IF PAYDAY OCCURS DURING AN EMPLOYEE'S VACATION, THE EMPLOYEE MAY RECEIVE HIS PAYCHECK BEFORE HE LEAVES FOR VACATION, PROVIDED THAT HE GIVES THE PAYROLL DEPARTMENT TWO WEEKS NOTICE.

ARTICLE 12 – PERSONAL DAYS

THREE PERSONAL DAYS WITH PAY WILL BE GRANTED TO ALL EMPLOYEES COVERED BY THIS AGREEMENT.

ARTICLE 13 – SAFETY COMMITTEE

THERE SHALL BE A SAFETY COMMITTEE CONSISTING OF AN EQUAL NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BOROUGH AND THE UNION. THEY SHALL MEET WHEN NECESSARY. IF A MAJORITY OF THE COMMITTEE AGREES THAT A JOB IS UNSAFE, THEN WORK SHALL CEASE PROVIDED HOWEVER THE BOROUGH SHALL BE GIVEN OPPORTUNITY TO IMMEDIATELY REMEDY THE CONDITION.

ARTICLE 14 – WORK UNIFORMS

ADEQUATE WORK CLOTHING SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR THE EMPLOYEE BY THE BOROUGH, RENTAL AS REQUIRED; SERVICE MUST BE ADEQUATE. THE BOROUGH SHALL PURCHASE 2 PAIRS OF SAFETY SHOES, WHICH MEET OSHA STANDARDS FOR ALL EMPLOYEES, COST NOT TO EXCEED \$200.00. IT IS MANDATORY FOR EMPLOYEES TO WEAR THE WORK UNIFORMS AND SHOES THAT ARE PROVIDED.

THE BOROUGH SHALL ALSO PROVIDE, EACH YEAR FOR EACH MAN 5 COLORED TEE SHIRTS WITH POCKETS, CREW NECKS, AND EMBLEMS, 2 COVERALLS, AND 8 PAIRS OF GLOVES (3 PAIR RUBBERIZED, 5 PAIRS WITH LEATHER PALMS).

A WINTER COAT WILL BE PROVIDED IF THE COST IS REASONABLE TO THE BOROUGH, AT AN APPROXIMATE COST OF \$80.00, ONE TIME DURING THIS AGREEMENT.

RAIN GEAR WILL BE PROVIDED, ONE PER EMPLOYEE PER YEAR. IF NEEDED, ADDITIONAL SETS WILL BE PROVIDED.

ARTICLE 15 – BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

IN THE EVENT OF A DEATH IN THE EMPLOYEE'S IMMEDIATE FAMILY, TIME OFF WITHOUT LOSS OF COMPENSATION FOR THREE (3) WORKING DAYS SHALL BE GRANTED. THE EMPLOYEE'S IMMEDIATE FAMILY SHALL BE DEFINED AS FOLLOWS: SPOUSE, CHILD, MOTHER, FATHER, MOTHER-IN-LAW, FATHER-IN-LAW, SISTER, BROTHER, SISTER-IN-LAW, BROTHER-IN-LAW, GRANDPARENTS, OR ANY OTHER PERSON LIVING IN THE EMPLOYEE'S RESIDENCE. TIME OFF WITHOUT LOSS OF COMPENSATION FOR ONE DAY SHALL BE GRANTED IN THE EVENT OF THE DEATH IN AN EMPLOYEE'S NON-IMMEDIATE FAMILY. NON-IMMEDIATE FAMILY SHALL BE DEFINED AS UNCLE, AUNT, NIECE AND NEPHEW.

ARTICLE 16 – INSURANCE AND RETIREMENT

EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011, ALL EMPLOYEES SHALL CONTRIBUTE NO LESS THAN THE CONTRIBUTION PERCENT OR DOLLAR AMOUNT ESTABLISHED BY STATE LAW TOWARD THE BOROUGH'S HEALTH BENEFITS PREMEIUM COSTS. THE EMPLOYER SHALL PROVIDE AN EMPLOYEE'S FAMILY HEALTH PLAN THAT IS AT LEAST EQUIVALENT TO THE BLUE CROSSBLUE SHIELD (INCLUDING RIDER J) AND MAJOR MEDICAL PLAN UNDER THE STATE HEALTH BENEFITS PROGRAM.

GROUP LIFE INSURANCE IN THE AMOUNT OF \$5,000.00 SHALL BE CARRIED BY THE BOROUGH FOR ALL EMPLOYEES AND PAID FULLY FOR BY THE BOROUGH. THE BOROUGH SHALL SUPPLEMENT THE PAY OF ANY EMPLOYEE WHO IS ON WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION SO THAT THE EMPLOYEE WILL RECEIVE FULL PAY FOR A PERIOD OF UP TO ONE YEAR.

ALL EMPLOYEES OF THE UNIT SHALL RECEIVE THE BENEFITS OF A FAMILY DENTAL PLAN. THE COST OF THE DENTAL PLAN SHALL BE BORNE BY THE BOROUGH FOR THE CONTRACT YEARS OF 1998 AND 1999 ONLY. THE DENTAL CAP SHALL ALSO BE RAISED SO THAT THERE IS NO COST TO THE EMPLOYEES DURING NEGOTIATIONS FOR A SUCCESSOR AGREEMENT.

EMPLOYEES WILL BE REIMBURSED UP TO \$75.00 FOR PRESCRIPTION SAFETY GLASSES ONCE IN THIS CONTRACT PERIOD. PROOF MUST BE GIVEN THAT GLASSES MEET OSHA STANDARDS.

ARTICLE 17 – TRANSFERS

EMPLOYEES DESIRING TO TRANSFER TO OTHER JOBS SHALL SUBMIT AN APPLICATION IN WRITING TO THEIR IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR. THE APPLICATION SHALL STATE THE REASON FOR THE REQUIRED TRANSFER.

EMPLOYEES REQUESTING TRANSFERS FOR REASONS OTHER THAN THE ELIMINATION OF THEIR JOBS, SHALL BE TRANSFERRED TO EQUAL OR LESSER PAY JOB CLASSIFICATION ON THE BASIS OF SENIORITY, PROVIDED A VACANCY EXISTS. EMPLOYEES REQUESTING TRANSFERS BECAUSE OF THE ELIMINATION OF THEIR JOBS SHALL BE TRANSFERRED TO THE SAME JOB OR ANY OTHER JOB OF AN EQUAL OR LOWER CLASSIFICATION ON THE BASIS OF SENIORITY.

TRANSFER REQUESTS SHALL REMAIN IN EFFECT FOR A PERIOD OF SIX MONTHS. EMPLOYEES WISHING TO KEEP THEIR TRANSFER REQUESTS UNDER CONSIDERATION BEYOND THIS PERIOD OF TIME SHALL SUBMIT A NEW TRANSFER REQUEST FOR EACH ADDITIONAL PERIOD OF SIX MONTHS. IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR TO NOTIFY THE EMPLOYEE WHEN THE SIX MONTHS ARE DUE TO EXPIRE.

ARTICLE 18 - DISCIPLINE

NO EMPLOYEE SHALL BE DISCIPLINED EXCEPT FOR JUST AND PROPER CAUSE.

1. IN ANY INSTANCE WHERE AN EMPLOYEE IS SUBJECT TO DISCIPLINARY ACTION WHICH WOULD RESULT IN LOST TIME, EXCEPT WHERE VIOLENCE AND/OR HEALTH AND SAFETY OF OTHER EMPLOYEES MAY BE INVOLVED, SUCH DISCIPLINARY ACTION SHALL NOT BE IMPLEMENTED FOR AT LEAST THREE (3) DAYS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DAY OF THE INCIDENT INVOLVED. DURING SUCH THREE (3) DAYS THE TWO SIDES SHALL MEET TO TRY TO SOLVE THE MATTER.

NO EMPLOYEE MAY BE SUSPENDED FOR A PERIOD OF MORE THAN FIVE (5) DAYS WITHOUT FIRST HAVING A DISCIPLINARY HEARING. NOTICE OF SUCH HEARING, ALONG WITH SPECIFICATIONS SHALL BE FURNISHED TO THE EMPLOYEE, WITH A COPY TO THE UNION PRESIDENT AND TO THE COUNCIL OFFICE. THE EMPLOYEE SHALL BE ENTITLED TO REPRESENTATION AT ANY SUCH HEARING BY THE LOCAL UNION PRESIDENT, UNION STEWARD AND COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE.

2. THE PERSON INITIATING ANY SUCH CHARGES SHALL NOT BE THE PRESIDING OFFICER AT ANY DISCIPLINARY HEARING.

ANY SUSPENSION OF FIVE (5) DAYS OR LESS MAY BECOME THE SUBJECT OF A GRIEVANCE.

ANY SUSPENSION IN EXCESS OF FIVE (5) DAYS, OR ANY REMOVAL OF AN EMPLOYEE MAY BE APPEALED TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL OR FINALLY TO BE APPEALED TO ARBITRATION PROVIDED THE UNION SUPPORTS THE REQUEST FOR ARBITRATION. THE EMPLOYEE SHALL HAVE TEN (10) DAYS FROM THE DATE OF RECEIPT OF FINAL NOTICE OF DISCIPLINE TO INDICATE HIS CHOICE.

ARTICLE 19 – REST PERIODS

RELIEF PERIODS OF FIFTEEN (15) MINUTES EACH SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR ALL EMPLOYEES, ONCE IN THE MORNING AND ONCE IN THE AFTERNOON, OR AT THE DISCRETION OF THE SUPERINTENDENT. A RELIEF PERIOD OF ONE-HALF (1/2) HOUR SHALL BE GIVEN TO ANY EMPLOYEE WORKING OVERTIME, ONCE EVERY FOUR (4) HOUR PERIOD.

ARTICLE 20 – MILITARY LEAVE

ANY FULL TIME EMPLOYEE SERVED BY THIS AGREEMENT WHO IS A MEMBER OF THE UNITED STATES RESERVES, OR A STATE NATIONAL GUARD, AND IS REQUIRED TO ENGAGE IN ANNUAL ACTIVE DUTY TRAINING, SHALL BE GRANTED A LEAVE OF ABSENCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE LAW. THE EMPLOYEE SHALL BE ENTITLED TO BE PAID THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN HIS REGULAR TOWNSHIP SALARY AND HIS MILITARY PAY, IF THE MILITARY PAY IS LESS THAN HIS REGULAR BASE TOWNSHIP PAY FOR THE PERIOD OF MILITARY LEAVE. SUCH LEAVE SHALL NOT EXCEED FIFTEEN (15) CONSECUTIVE DAYS OF TRAINING.

ARTICLE 21 – JURY LEAVE

ANY PERMANENT FULL TIME EMPLOYEE COVERED BY THIS AGREEMENT WHO IS REQUIRED TO SERVE ON A JURY, SHALL BE GRANTED A LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITH PAY TO SERVE ON SAID JURY. DURING THE TIME THAT HE IS SERVING ON SAID JURY, THE EMPLOYEE SHALL RECEIVE HIS PAY FROM THE BOROUGH. THE AMOUNT OF PAY TO BE THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN FULL PAY AND JURY PAY.

THE EMPLOYEE SHALL BE PAID ONLY FOR ACTUAL TIME REQUIRED TO SERVE ON JURY DUTY, AND, IF THERE ARE TIMES THE EMPLOYEE ISN'T SCHEDULED FOR JURY DUTY, THEN HE MUST REPORT FOR WORK. IF EXCUSED BEFORE 1 P.M. FOR THE DAY, HE SHALL REPORT FOR WORK.

ALL REQUESTS FOR JURY LEAVE MUST BE FILED WITH DEPARTMENT HEAD WITHIN THREE (3) DAYS FROM RECEIPT OF SUMMONS. CERTIFICATE OF JURY SERVICE FOLLOWING JURY DUTY SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE DEPARTMENT HEAD AND PLACED IN PERSONNEL HISTORY FILE.

ARTICLE 22 – PERSONNEL ACCESS

REPRESENTATIVES OF THE UNION, WHO ARE NOT EMPLOYEES, PREVIOUSLY ACCREDITED TO THE EMPLOYER IN WRITING BY THE UNION, SHALL BE PERMITTED TO COME ON THE PREMISES OF THE EMPLOYER FOR THE PURPOSE OF INVESTIGATING AND DISCUSSING GRIEVANCES, SO LONG AS SUCH RIGHT IS REASONABLY EXERCISED AND THERE IS NO UNDUE INTERFERENCE WITH WORK PROGRESS, PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THEY FIRST OBTAIN PERMISSION TO DO SO FROM THE ADMINISTRATOR OR HIS DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE, PERMISSION FOR WHICH SHALL NOT BE UNREASONABLY WITHHELD.

ARTICLE 23 – UNION REPRESENTATIVES

THE BOROUGH RECOGNIZES AND SHALL DEAL WITH THE ACCREDITED UNION STEWARD IN ALL MATTERS RELATING TO GRIEVANCES AND INTERPRETATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.

A WRITTEN LIST OF THE UNION STEWARDS SHALL BE FURNISHED TO THE EMPLOYER IMMEDIATELY AFTER THEIR DESIGNATION.

THE BOROUGH AGREES TO RECOGNIZE A MAXIMUM OF TWO (2) STEWARDS SELECTED BY THE UNION.

ARTICLE 24 – RETIREMENT

ALL EMPLOYEES ENROLLED IN THE PUBLIC RETIREMENT SYSTEM ARE SUBJECT TO THE BENEFITS, REQUIREMENTS AND PROVISIONS OF THOSE PLANS.

ARTICLE 25 – WORK RULES AND REGULATIONS

THE BOROUGH MAY ESTABLISH REASONABLE AND NECESSARY RULES OF WORK AND CONDUCT FOR EMPLOYEES. SUCH RULES SHALL BE EQUITABLY APPLIED AND ENFORCED. COPIES OF ALL SUCH RULES SHALL BE DISTRIBUTED TO ALL EMPLOYEES COVERED BY THIS AGREEMENT AND TO THE UNION.

THE EMPLOYER AGREES TO NEGOTIATE WORK RULES WITH THE UNION AT LEAST ONE WEEK PRIOR TO THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SAME.

ARTICLE 26 – SEVERABILITY

THE BOROUGH AND THE UNION RECOGNIZE AND AGREE THAT ALL PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT ARE SUBJECT TO LAW. IN THE EVENT THAT ANY PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT IS RENDERED ILLEGAL OR INVALID UNDER ANY APPLICABLE LAW OF STATE OR FEDERAL REGULATIONS, SUCH ILLEGALITY OR INVALIDITY SHALL EFFECT ONLY THE PARTICULAR PROVISION WHICH SHALL BE DEEMED VOID OR INOPERATIVE, BUT ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT SHALL CONTINUE IN EFFECT. THE PARTIES AGREE TO IMMEDIATELY NEGOTIATE A SUBSTITUTE PROVISION FOR THE INVALIDATED PORTION THEREOF.

ARTICLE 27 – SALARIES

Effective and retroactive to January 1, 2015 all employees of the bargaining unit shall receive a 1% increase in their base salary. Effective January 1, 2016 all employees of the bargaining unit shall receive a 2% increase in their base salary. Effective January 1, 2017 all employees of the bargaining unit shall receive a 2% increase in their base salary.

THE WAGE RATES ARE DETAILED IN APPENDIXES B, AND C.

ARTICLE 28 – TERMINATION

It is further mutually agreed between the parties hereto that the aforesaid Articles contained in this Agreement shall become effective immediately upon adoption by the governing body and shall be retroactive to the 1st day of January, 2012 and shall continue in effect for two years, until December 31, 2014.

It shall be renewed from year to year thereafter unless either party shall give written notice of its desire to modify the Agreement. Such notice shall be by mail by October 1^{st} of any succeeding year.

In the event that such notice is given, negotiations shall begin not later than 120 days prior to the anniversary date; this Agreement shall remain in full force and be effective during the period of negotiations and until notice of termination of this Agreement is provided to the other party in the manner set forth in the following paragraph.

In the event that either party desires to terminate this Agreement, written notice must be given to the other party not less than 10 days prior to the desired termination date which shall not be before the anniversary date set forth in the preceding paragraph.

In the event that either party desires to terminate this Agreement, written notice must be given to the other party not less than 10 days prior to the desired termination date which shall not be before the anniversary date set forth in the preceding paragraph.

ARTICLE 29 – AGENCY SHOP

ANY EMPLOYEE IN THE BARGAINING UNIT ON THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS AGREEMENT WHO DOES NOT JOIN THE UNION WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS THEREAFTER, ANY NEW EMPLOYEE WHO DOES NOT JOIN WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS OR INITIAL EMPLOYMENT WITHIN THE UNIT, AND ANY EMPLOYEE PREVIOUSLY EMPLOYED WITHIN THE UNIT WHO DOES NOT

JOIN WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS OF REENTRY INTO EMPLOYMENT WITHIN THE UNIT SHALL, AS A CONDITION OF EMPLOYMENT, PAY A REPRESENTATION FEE TO THE UNION BY AUTOMATIC PAYROLL DEDUCTION. THE REPRESENTATION FEE SHALL BE IN AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO EIGHTY-FIVE PERCENT (85%) OF THE REGULAR UNION MEMBERSHIP DUES, FEES AND ASSESSMENTS AS CERTIFIED TO THE EMPLOYER BY THE UNION. THE UNION MY REVISE ITS CERTIFICATION OF THE AMOUNT OF THE REPRESENTATION FEE AT ANY TIME TO REFLECT CHANGES IN THE REGULAR UNION MEMBERSHIP DUES, FEES AND ASSESSMENTS. THE UNION'S ENTITLEMENT TO THE REPRESENTATION FEE SHALL CONTINUE BEYOND THE TERMINATION DATE OF THIS AGREEMENT SO LONG AS THE UNION REMAINS THE MAJORITY REPRESENTATIVE OF THE EMPLOYEES IN THIS UNIT, PROVIDED THAT NO MODIFICATION IS MADE IN THIS PROVISION BY A SUCCESSOR AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE UNION AND THE EMPLOYER.

IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT THE UNION HAS A PROVISION IN THE INTERNATIONAL CONSTITUTION, WHICH PROVIDES A PROCEDURE, WHEREBY A PERSON PAYING A FEE UNDER AN AGENCY SHOP AGREEMENT MAY OBTAIN A REBATE FOR THAT PORTION OF HIS FEE, WHICH IS USED FOR PARTISAN POLITICAL OR IDEOLOGICAL PURPOSES.

ARTICLE 30 - FULLY BARGAINED

THE PARTIES AGREE THAT THEY HAVE FULLY BARGAINED AND AGREED UPON ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT AND INCORPORATE THE COMPLETE AND FINAL UNDERSTANDING AND SETTLEMENT BY THE PARTIES OF ALL BARGAINABLE ISSUES WHICH WERE OR COULD HAVE BEEN THE SUBJECT OF NEGOTIATIONS.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, WE HAVE HEREUNDER SET OUR HANDS AND SEAL ON THE DATE AND YEAR FIRST HEREINABOVE WRITTEN.

FOR THE EMPLOYER

18/ Joann Syptak

FOR THE UNION

/s/

/s/

APPENDIX A

EQUIPMENT OPERATOR (STREETS)

EQUIPMENT OPERATOR (SANITATION)

TRUCK DRIVER

LABORER

APPENDIX B

RARITAN BOROUGH PUBLIC WORKS HOURLY WAGE RATES

	2015	1%				
	1	2	3	4	5	6
EQUIPMENT OPERATOR, STREETS	23.35	24.28	25.24	26.91	28.67	30.57
EQUIPMENT OPERATOR, SANITATION	22.63	23.59	24.53	26.11	27.82	29.66
TRUCK DRIVER	22.29	23.17	24.07	25.63	27.31	29.09
LABORER	21.45	22.34	23.24	24.75	26.29	28.01
PUBLIC WORKS FOREMAN						30.19
	2016	2%				
	1	2	3	4	5	6
EQUIPMENT OPERATOR, STREETS	23.81	24.77	25.74	27.45	29.24	31.18
EQUIPMENT OPERATOR, SANITATION	23.08	24.06	25.02	26.63	28.38	30.25
TRUCK DRIVER	22.74	23.63	24.55	26.14	27.86	29.67
LABORER	21.88	22.79	23.70	25.25	26.82	28.57
PUBLIC WORKS FOREMAN						30.79
	2017	2%				-
	1	2	3	4	5	6
EQUIPMENT OPERATOR, STREETS	24.29	25.27	26.25	28.00	29.82	31.80
EQUIPMENT OPERATOR, SANITATION	23.54	24.54	25.52	27.16	28.95	30.86
TRUCK DRIVER	23.19	24.10	25.04	26.66	28.42	30.26
Laborer	22.32	23.25	24.17	25.76	27.36	29.14
PUBLIC WORKS FOREMAN						31.41

APPENDIX C

- 1. RARITAN PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEES HIRED PRIOR TO JUNE 1, 1986, SHALL BE PAID AT STEP # 6.
- 2. All employees hired after June 1, 1986, may be hired at any Step.
- 3. IF PERFORMANCE WAS SATISFACTORY, EMPLOYEES WOULD MOVE TO THE NEXT HIGHER STEP ON EACH SUCCESSIVE ANNIVERSARY DATE OF HIRE, UNLESS THEY ARE ALREADY AT STEP # 6.